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On 13 December 1801 (E2/163) Ferdinando Fairfax sold
"approximately 1600" acres to Baldwin Dade of Alexandria for $10,800.
Since it appears to be a plausible assumption that tax collectors of any
period can be trusted to extract as much tax as possible, the fact that,
according to Fairfax County tax records, Dade paid taxes on "only" 1555
acres in 1802 and following years, makes it is reasonable to hypothesize
that "approximately 1600" really was 1555 acres. According to E2/163 the
land was “part of the tract described in the Dower of Eliza Fairfax" (2/429
Loudoun) and was the easternmost end of the Page Lott; this clearly
establishes the earlier chain of ownership: Fairfax received the land from
the Page family who received it (via a court decree) from Robert Carter,
Jr., who received it as part of a patent. The metes and bounds of E2/163
are incomplete and have one extremely grevious error; however, the exact

boundaries can be reconstructed:
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a: begin at stone, corner to Lot 14 of entire tract and in line of

Lot 19 where it crosses Sugarland Run from several

Saplins (sic) marked as pointers,

b: stake in grand line of division between this tract and that of
Thomas Fairfax (ba: S 69 1/2° E poles),

e McCarty line (cb: W 27 1/2 E 151 poles),

d: line of Thomas Patent northwest of Coleman, Gunnell and Altons

(dc: with McCarty line or lines),

e: branch of Sugarland Run (ed: with lines),

f: main branch [of Sugarland Run] (fe: with meanders thereof),
g: southeast corner of Lot 13 (gf: with Sugarland Run),

a: beginning (ag: by straight line)

~ 1600 acres

according to survey of William H. Harding

These metes and bounds become clearer when noting:

(1) Lot 14 is the land Richard Coleman purchased from Ferdinando
Fairfax and described in Chapter G;

(2) Lot 19 is the land David Holmes purchased from Ferdinando
Fairfax and sold to William W. Williams (see Chapter F);

(3) Since the direction of Lot 19 from Sugarland Run to Thomas
Fairfax's line is S 69 1/2° E and since the distance/direction of U2/200,
Lot 7 of Baldwin Dade's division (U2/200 - see below for details), is S 69
1/2° E 81 poles, the blank in "ab" above must be 81 poles.

(4) Clearly the distance from b to McCarty's line ig not 151

A\

poles. Using the map in B. Mitchell's "Beginning at a White Oak...,” the

H~4&



—t

distance is more mnearly 1510 poles, Thus it appears the deed inadvertantly
deleted the last digit of the distance.

(5) In e, the blank is probably Rosier's Branch; since Rosier's
Branch reasonably closely parallels a segment of Thomas patent, it is not
obvious precisely where point e lies; the figures indicates a point where

t

the branch intersects Thomas but this is merely "plausible,” not compelling
in any manner.
(6) John Gunnell purchased Page Lot 13 from F. Fairfax on 19

November 1799 (E2/409).

This wonderful deductive reasoning and detective work is followed
by the discouraging (at least momentarily) realization that although
Baldwin Dade did partition his land amongst his children and even recorded
the partition in the County's deed books (P2/21), the deed was destroyed,
along with many others during the Civil War. Countering this unfortunate
circumstance and making life a little more palatable is the fact that at
least some of Dade's division can be reconstructed by searching for the
deeds of sale of all of his children [Elizabeth, Sarah (married Thomas
Davis), John, Catherine* (married Walter Alexander) and Julia (married a
Terrett); there may also be others but since this collection gives enough
information to reconstruct the relevant, to Herndon, parcels of land, any

other children will be ignored].

* Baldwin's wife was also a Catherine.
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John Dade's 84 acres

On 15 November 1813 (N2/24) John Dade sold Thomas Davis 84 acres
of the Baldwin Dade division. This deed book has been destroyed so no

further information can be extracted directly from the deed,

On 24 October 1820 (S2/118) Thomas/Sarah Davis of Prince William
County, Virginia, sold these 84 acres to John Chapman Hunter of Fairfax
County for $300. This land was "a certain lot or parcel of land known as
lot 6, being part of a larger tract of land divided between heirs of
Baldwin Dade, deceased, agreedby to a Decree of the Chancery Court of
Fairfax County...which said lot, fell, in the division between said heirs
to John Dade, son of said Baldwin Dade, deceased, and by him conveyed to
said Thomas Davis by deed bearing date of 15 November 1813 lying...near

"

Sugarland run. . .
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a: begin at red oak sapling, a southeast corner to Lot No. 7% in said

division,
b: pile of stones, corner to Lot No. 5 (ba: N 69 1/2° W 88 poles),
c: pile of stones, corner to Lots No. 5, 4* and 3 in said division

(cb: N 22 1/2° E 144 poles),

d: chestnut sapling, corner to Lot No. 3 (dec: S 69 1/2° E 99 poles),
a: beginning (ad: S 27 1/2° W 144 poles)
84 acres

John C./Sarah D. Hunter sold this same 84 acre parcel to

Robert Gunnell of Fairfax County for $380 on 1 March 1842 (G3/235).

-~

* If I have done my geometry correctly (and that is a very questionable
assumption) then the references to lots 7 and 4 really must mean 3 and 6.
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Elizabeth Dade's 98.5 acres

On 19 May 1823 (U2/200) Betsy Dade of Alexandria and the District
of Columbia sold 98 1/2 acres (lot 3) to Hugh Graham of Fairfax for $300.
This was a "tract of land allotted to Betsy Davis in division between
herself and her brothers and sisters of tract of land lying in Fairfax

County on waters of Sugarland Run,”

‘Y
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a: begin at "A,” red oak on east side of Sugarland Run* and adjoining
the land of the heirs of William W. Williams,

b: "B", a small chestnut in the supposed line of Thomas Fairfax and
corner to aforesaid heirs of Wm. W. Williams (ba: binding with
their line S 69 1/2° E 81 poles),

c: red oak at "C", corner to John C. Hunter (cb: North 137 poles)

d: corner of Catherine Alexander's lot on Sugarland Run* (dc: N 69
1/2% W 150 poles),

a: beginning (ad: up the run)

98.5 acres

% Clearly there is an error here - E2/163 (Fairfax to Dade) distinctly
calls for a straight line from Sugarland Run where it intersects Herndon's
north corporate line to W. Williams line; this idea of a straight line,
rather than using Sugarland Run precisely as the boundary is consistent
with Chapter G. Presumably this error was merely an oversight and was
corrected later since the boundary is now a straight line. On the
accompanying figure the dashed line represents the “correct boundary even
though the cross hash lines described the boundary as stated in this deed.

B-11



Catherine Dade's 80 acres

Catherine/Walter Alexander of Alexandria and the District of
Columbia also sold land to Hugh Graham - 80 acres, more or less, on 19
April 1825 for $200 (W2/121). This land was "...all that land allotted to
Catherine Alexander [lot 5] in the division between herself and her
brothers and sisters of a tract of land lying in Fairfax County and State

of Virginia on the waters of Sugarland Run.”

oy
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begin at a small gum bush where a stone is set and a corner to the
lot of Sarah Dade,

pile of stones corner to lots of John Dade, Julia Terrett and
Sarah Dade (ba: binding with lot S 69 1/2° E 110 poles),

pile of stones, corner of John Dade's lot and in line of Elizabeth
Dade's lots (cb: along line of John Dade S 22 1/2° W 144 poles),
line of Richard Coleman's purchase of Ferdinando Fairfax, now the
land of Charles Radcliffe (dc: along line of Elizabeth Dade N 69
1/2° ¥ [no distance given]),

corner of George Gunnell's land which was purchased of Ferdinando
Fairfax by John Gunnell (ed: along the line of Coleman's
purchase),

beginning (ae: down Sugarland Run)

80 acres

H-14
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Robert Gunnell

Robert Gunnell apparently liked land near Sugarland Run for
he purchased the parcels of land Hugh Graham bought from Betsy Dade and
Catherine/Walter Alexander on 15 November 1838 (E3/97) for $700. This land
("175 acres, more or less") was "...land lying in said [Fairfax] county on
Sugarland run and adjoining the lands of the late Charles Ratcliffe and
others and which land he purchased of Elizabeth Dade and Catherine

Alexander,..”

H~-15
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a: begin at red oak on south of Sugarland Run above the sawmill and

Dam of Mrs. Ratcliffe,

b: chestnut cut down (ba: S 67° E 82 poles),

cs red oak or black oak (eb: N 30° E 35 poles),

d: pile of stones (dc: N 66° W 89 poles),

e: pile of stones (ed: N 25° E 146 [0?] poles),

f: Sugarland Run {fe: N 69 1/2° W 110 poles),

g: up the run (gf: S 18° W 21 poles),

h: with the run (hg: S 45° E 12 poles),

i: stone on the West side of the run (ih: S 8° W 20 poles 20 links),*
a: beginning (ai: with said run)**

175 acres more or less

Thus by 1842 Robert Gunnell owned lots 5, 6 and 3 from Baldwin
Dade's division = John Dade's 84 acres, Elizabeth Dade's 98.5 and Catherine
Alexander's 80 acres. Since these 262 acres contain all of Chapter H's
land, the further history of Gunnell's land will be discussed; but first a

diversion which is inserted simply because the information was found in the

* S 8° W is very likely incorrect - my strong prejudice is that the lot
is supposed to have a corner at a corner of Gunnell-Coleman just as W2/121
did; also going from "h" to "i” S 8° W does not end on Sugarland Run.

Point "i" was selected as 20 poles 20 links from "h" and on Sugarland Run -
a point very consistent with W2/121,

**% (Clearly there is an error here — E2/163 (Fairfax to Dade) distinctly
calls for a straight line from Sugarland Run where it intersects Herndon's
north corporate line to W. Williams line; this idea of a straight line,
rather than using Sugarland Run precisely as the boundary is consistent
with Chapter G. Presumably this error was merely an oversight amsd was
corrected later since the boundary is now a straight line. On the
accompanying figure the dashed line represents the "correct boundary even
though the cross hash lines described the boundary as stated in this deed.
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research on Dade and the author wants to impress the reader(s) by boasting

of all of the immense amount of research (even if irrelevant) that was

done.
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Julia Dade's 118 acres

John H. and Julia Terrett, having received lot 7 in Baldwin Dade's
(Julia's father) division, sold the entire 118 acre parcel to John C.
Hunter on 15 December 1817. The deed of sale has not been found in the
County records; the only possible deed is P2/338 which is annotated in the
index of deeds to be a trust from John Terrett to John C. Hunter. Possibly
this is a deed of sale and not a trust or possibly the deed of sale was
never recorded (unlikely) - since these pages are amongst the missing,
there is no direct way to determine the substance and relevance of

P2/338. (The date 15 December 1817 comes from C3/198).

John C./Sarah Hunter, for some reason, decided to give $300 to
each of their children. However, instead of giving $300 to their sons,
Fredrick Augustus Hunter of Fairfax County and Thomas Triplett Hunter of
the U.S. Navy, they instead sold the 118‘acres they had bought from the

Terretts to these two sons for $1 on 31 March 1834 (C3/198).

H-19
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a: begin at 3 gums on Scott's Branch,* corner to Lot of lands in
division which fell to Sarah Dade,

b: pile of stones in a field (ba: 8§ 14° W 120 poles),

c: chestnut in line of the land of Thomas Fairfax, Esq. (cb:

S 69 1/2° E 99 poles),

d: hickory sapling in line of Fairfax (dec: N 27 1/2° E 262 poles),
e: stake between two sycamores (ed: N 63 3/4° W 57 poles),
f: ~— (fe: S 3° E 82 poles),
g: large white oak trees near Scott's branch (gf: S 25° W 24 poles),
a: beginning (ag: thence to beginning)

118 acres

The Hunter sons then sold the same 118 acres to John Dyer of

Fairfax County for $500 on 20 June 1841 (G3/69).

John Dyer kept the land for several years and then sold the 118
acres to William H. Gunnell "(of Robert)" of Fairfax County for $1400 on 18
September 1855 (X3/27). Gunnell immediately placed a lien on the land on
18 September 1855 (X3/28) in order to secure seven notes of $200 each (plus
interest on all but the first note) that he owed Dyer. The trust with
George W, Hunter, Jr., as trustee, had the usual claim concerning default--
if Gunnell defaulted, Hunter was to auction the land after advertising for

four consecutive weeks in the Fairfax Herald or another paper printed in

Alexandria; if Gunnell paid the notes, the lien became void. No!;elease

has been found for the debt,

*  Since "logically” lot 7 should be next to lot 6, Scott Branch is the
same as what is called Rosier's Branch today.
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Since this 118 acres does not contain any of the land that
eventually became Herndon, its subsequent (to 1855) history will be
described only briefly: as mentioned below, the ownership of William
Gunnell's land after his death became controversial enough to prompt a law
suit in the Fairfax County Circuit Court. As a result of this suit
(William H. Gunnell, administrator, vs Amanda Cornell [wife of John R.
Cornell and widow of Wm. H. Gunnell] and others). Thomas Murray was
appointed commissioner in November 1860. Murray died and Thomas Moore was
appointed to replace him in November 1866. Moore then sold the 118 acres
to James W. Smith on 8 June 1868 (14/232) for $1100. This 118 acres must
have enjoyed the attention that lawsuits bring for it became involved in
another lawsuit (Smith vs Smith); this suit was resolved when Walter T.
Oliver was appointed special commissioner and sold the 118 acres to J. R.

McMillen on 19 January 1906 (16/188).

H-22



N

e’

ot

s

I. The preceding discussion traces how Robert Gunnell acquired by
1842 all of the land that once was owned by Baldwin Dade and which is now
part of Herndon. Gunnell filed a will (Will Book W1/86) in Fairfax County
on 30 July 1845. 1In his will he left his entire estate to his wife, Nancy,
"as long as she lives;"” the land then would, presumably, descend to his
gsole child -~ William H. Gunnell. Ignoring (i.e., not doing the required
research) the precise dates of Robert and Nancy Gunnell's deaths means that
the exact date on which William H. Gunnell* assumed control of the 262 (84
+ 98.5 + 80) acres of concern to this little discussion is not known;
however, given that William sold part of this land in 1857, it is a

reasonable conclusion that he inherited the land sometime before then.

*  The Gunnell deeds often explicitly referred to "Wm H. Gunnell (of
Robert),” presumably because there were several Gunnells involved in land
transactions during our William Gunnell's life; in fact there was even
another William Gunnell buying/selling land.

H~-23
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IA: William Gunnell (of Robert) sold part of the land he inherited

from his parents in 1857; this 5 acres is not part of Herndon, but since
something is known of its history a short digression will be made to
enliven this brief history of Herndon with interesting, but not necessarily
useful, facts: On 28 December 1857 "William H. Gunnell (of Robert)” sold
"5 acres more or less . . . [part of] Dade's Lot 6" to Charles W. Kitchen

of Fairfax County for $75 (A4/114).

"

H-24
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a: begin at planted stone corner to Lots 6 and 3 [7?] in Dade

division, in Benjamin Thornton's line [Thomas Fairfax's patent

linel,
b: another stone (ba: S 30° W 63 poles 5 links),
et stone, in hollow near a drain (cb: leaving Thornton's line,

N 73 1/2° W 8 poles),
d: stone in a lot of No. 3 (dc: with drain N 20 1/2° E 63 4/5 poles),
a: beginning (ad: with line S 66 3/4° E 19 poles)

5 acres, more or less

On 16 January 1868 (H4/481) Charles W./Harriet A. Kitchen of
"Herndon County of Fairfax” sold these five acres to James W. Smith of

Steuben County, New York, for $300.

Sometime around 20 December 1881 James W. Smith sold the same five
acres to William T. Norton; however, the deed was never recorded.
Regardless of this minor oversight, William T;/Abigail Norton sold the five
acres to Salina J. Huntt for %$200 ($150 on 20 becember 1881 and $50 in 12
months) on 20 December 1881 (F5/27). Salina J; Huntt married Robert
Stewart and several years later must have realized that the deed between
Smith and Norton had never been recorded and tﬁat the deed itself had been
lost. Salina J. Stewart went to court, and in, the suit of "Salina J.

”

Stewart vs. William T. Norton and others,” Mrs, Stewart tried to "set up,

establish and have re—execution of a deed from James W. Smith and wife to

William T. Norton.” James W. Smith had died but apparently the Stewarts

H~26
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were persuasive for the court appointed a special commissioner, Thomas

Keith, to sell the 5-acre plot to Salina J. Stewart for $1 (D6/446) on 11

October 1899,
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II: Having disposed of these interesting, but irrelevant to Herndon,
vignettes concerning the 118 and 5 acre parcels, this engrossing tome
returns to its main theme of Herndon's history. Ignoring the 123 acres
already dealt with, William H. Gunnell (of Robert) owned 257 acres of land
previously owned by Baldwin Dade. Gunnell died (c¢c. 1858 or 9) still owning
this land. Apparently these 257 acres were so impressed by the prestige
that the 118 acre parcel had received by being the center of a law suit,
that they decided to be more obstinate and require a much larger period of
negotiation before accepting a new, legal owner. In this attitude the land
was actually conforming to a Herndon tradition - in the history of almost
all of the nine tracts of land that eventually contributed to Herndon's
acreage, an owner of some sizable parcel of land died without a clear will;
consequently lawsuits followed between potential heirs. This tract was not
an exception; it just waited longer to do it! When William H. Gunnell
died, Amanda Cornell [widow of William H. Gunnell--see 14/232] and others
sued William H., Gunnell's administrator. During the Fairfax County Circuit
Court's June 1873 term, a decree was signed directing that a certain parcel
of land be sold at public auction. Since no one bought it, Thomas Moore,
an appointed commissioner of the Court, “with the consent of the parties
principally interested in land sale and the process thereof, did on the 8th
day of March 1876" agree to sell the land to Claudius B. Smith of
Washington, D.C., for $1,050. The Court approved the sale, Smith paid
Moore the $1,050 and, consequently, the Court, during its June 18?6 term,

ordered Moore to officially convey ownership of the land to Smith.
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On 10 November 1877 (V4/324) Thomas Moore, "commissioner of sale
in suit pending in the Circuit Court of Fairfax County in the name of
William H. Gunnell admr vs Amanda Cornell and others” sold the following
land to C. B. Smith for $1: "...same [tract] of which the late William H.
Gunnell died seized and possessed* and lying on Sugar Land Run excepting

therefrom the following lots assigned to his widow as dower™:

* This deed [and many, many subsequent deeds involving the same parcel]
never clearly delineate the land sold to Smith; the land is described
merely as this quotation is doing.

H-29
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a: begin at planted stone in the Westerly side of the County Road and

on the south line of said Farm [never says what/whose farm],

b: planted stone (ba: on road S 25° W 32 rods, 5 links),
c: Sugar Land Run (cb: S 66 1/2° W 94 1/3 rods),

d: north line of the Farm (dec: down the Run),

a: beginning (ad: S 66 1/2° E 108 rods, 15 links)

20 acres, 32 rods (20.2 acres)

a: begin at large white oak in West side of road,

b: stake with 3 white oak saplings as pointers (ba: with road South
30 rods),

c: stake with 2 black oaks and one hickory sapling as pointers (cb:

West 32 rods),

d: stake with Dogwoods as pointer (dc: North 30 rods),
a: beginning (ad: East 32 rods)
6 acres

Although the 20.2 and 6.0 acres are not within Herndon, it is
worth following the ownership of these lands simply for clarity. William
H, Gunnell died leaving Emma Henrietta Cornell as his sole heir; since
Amanda Cornell was William Gunnell's widow, Emma probably was William's
only child. In V4/324 the Court ordered the sale of all of Gunnell's land
to C.B. Smith except for two parcels reserved as a dower for his widow,
Amanda. (Possibly the entire Court suit was instigated by Aman@a because

she felt entitled to a dower and that it was "improper” for William to
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leave all of the land to her daughter.) These two parcels (20.2 and 6
acres) were willed to Emma Cornell* at her mother's death. Emman then
willed these two parcels to her daughter, Georgia A. Cornell (Will Book 20

page 287; her will was probated in 1941) (476/111).

Georgia A. Cornell, single, then sold these two parcels to Chester

C. Lowe for $10 on 26 January 1946 (476/111).

* (Clearly something is incorrect here - if Emma was William Gunnell's
child and adopted by her stepfather (Mr. Cornell) her children would not be
Cornell's unless she married an half brother, another, unrelated Cornell or
her will is incorrect and Georgia A. Cornmell is not a daughter; something
is clearly confusing. No research has been done to straighten this out.
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III. Since the land jugglings are slightly confusing, it is worth
recapitulating that William H. Gunnell actually died "seized and possessed”
of 375 1/2 acres (118 + 84 + 80 + 98 1/2 -5 acres). By 1877 the 118 acre
parcel had been sold to James W. Smith so only 257 1/2 acres remained. The
court decree described in V4/324, divides this into three parcels~-20.2,

6.0 and 231.3 acres.

Having traced all of these extraneous (to Herndon) parcels of
land, it is now relevant to follow the remaining "230 acres, more or less'

of William Henry Gunnell.

On 10 November 1877 (the same day Smith bought this same parcel of
land from Thomas Moore, the commissioner), C. B./Mina Smith of "Uniontown,
Washington County, District of Columbia™ sold the same land described in

V4/324 to Otis F. Smith of Brandon, Vermont for $1200 (V4/388).

Otis F./Lucinda Smith of Brandon, Vermont, then sold this exact
same parcel to Samuel A. Brewer of Niagara County, New York for $1800 on 14

January 1878 (W4/20).

Samuel A./Selinda Brewer of Hartford, Niagara County, New York,
then sold the same land to John D. Spring of Medina, Orleans County, New
York for $4000 on 17 March 1883 (€5/221)., It is worth noting that all of
the deeds, including this one described the land as being the “same William
H. Gunnell died seized and possessed and lying on Sugar Land Runr save and

except two lots...20 acres...b acres.” In addition, this deed states that
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"This deed [is] to convey the residue of said tract containing 230 acres
more or less according to survey of Stephen D. Farr, May 1883." The
specific metes and bounds of Farr's survey are not mentioned. Finally,
specific to this sale, the actual sale is subject to the 3 December 1878
lease of a portion of the land between Brewer and E. Moody and Sons. This

deed transfers the lease to John D. Spring.

Following the, by now, established principle of not keeping the
land for too long, John D./Luana M. Spring “of " sold the same parcel
to Samuel W. Taylor of the City of Burlington [New Jerseyl for $5000 “"plus
other considerations in exchange of properties.” The words in previous
deeds concerning Gunnell's land and Farr's survey are included, indicating
that the exact same parcel was being sold. The sale occurred on 25

February 1891 (K5/174).

Taylor followed the tradition very carefully, for he then sold the
same property to Nathan E. Perkins of the County of Burlington, New Jersey,
for $5000 "and other consideration in exchange of properties” on 18 July
1891 (1.5/98). The usual words concerning Gunnell's land and Farr's survey

were included.

Nathan E./Sarah. R. Perkins did not want to be shown up by Taylor
so they sold it even faster—-on 6 August 1891 (L5/100) to David M. Hess of
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, for $5000. The usual words about Gunnell and

-

Farr were included.
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Hess did not follow tradition quite as closely as Perkins, for he
did not sell the land until 15 May 1893 (05/532). Hess sold the land to
"Mary Elma Jarrett, wife of Levi D. Jarrett” for $7500. Hess might not
have followed tradition, but he did make a 50% profit in two vears! This

deed, as usual, contained the words concerning Gunnell and Farr.

Mary Elma Jarrett (widow) sold this passed-around tract of land to
Fredrick C.S. Hunter on 30 August 1906 for $4000 (X6/598); $1600 of which
was paid in cash. This deed does not contain the words concerning Gunnell
and Farr but does say that the land is identical to that Hess sold Jarrett
in 05/532., Mary Elma (and husband) Jarrett had taken out a $1000 trust on
4 June 1903 (N6/104) with C. M. Lawrence and W. ¥. Middleton as trustees.
This lien was to secure the $1000 owed Philip W. Lawrence. Hunter agreed,
as part of X6/598, to assume this lien as part of the $4000 price. The
lien was released on 26 December 1919 (08/509) when Hugh Hutchinson owned

the land.

Hunter ("unmarried”) knew very well the tradition of this land,
since he sold it to Hugh B. Hutchinson, of Herndon, and Warren M. McNair
"for 310" on 25 April 1907 (¥X6/600). As with all of these sales for §1 or
310, there must have been some other transfer of property or money not

recorded in the deed; what it was in this instance is unknown.

McNair could not keep the power of tradition at bay since he and
his wife, Lucy D., sold their interest in the land to Hutchinson for $10 on

20 March 1909 (F7/513). While no mention of Gunnell or Farr is made,
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explicit reference to earlier deeds makes it clear that this is the same

parcel that Smith bought of Moore in 1877.

The strain of attempting to break this tradition apparently was
rather severe on Hutchinson--he kept the land until 1926, but it killed
him! In a suit on 6 March 1926 in Loudoun County, Hugh B. Hutchinson,
Charles Cuthbert Hutchinson, Gilbert M. Hutchinson and Ina Steele
Hutchinson agreed to sell the real estate of the late Hugh B. Hutchinson.
William Martin, Bruce McIntosh and Thomas Keith were appointed
comnissioners; Martin posted $15,000 bond. Thomas Keith resigned as
commissioner in June 1927 and McIntosh and Martin received an offer from
Gilbert M. Hutchinson to buy all of his father's land at a private sale.
Consequently, the court appointed W. H. Martin as special commissioner in
the suit of "Martin, Trustee vs Hutchinson's Executors” to sell the land to
Gilbert M. Hutchinson. He did so on 27 January 1927 (C10/7). Hugh
Hutchinson owned thousands of acres, acquired through many transactions;
consequently Cl10/7 is complicated. On page 12 a parcel of land that Hugh
Hutchinson and Warren McNair (X6/600, 25 April 1907) bought of Fredrick C.
S. Hunter and which Warren McNair had then sold his interest in to
Hutchinson on 20 March 1909 (F7/513) is described. Consequently Gilbert M.

Hutchinson now owns this "230 acres more or less excepting two lots.”

Dr. Hugh B. Hutchinson, unmarried, sold Gilbert M. Hutchinson all
of his interest in the land of his father (except for certain parcels not

-

in Herndon) on 1 July 1927 (C10/241).
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Gilbert M. Hutchinson and Ina Steele Hutchinson (widow of Hugh B,
Hutchinson) sold thousands of acres of land to A. Smith Bowman of Indiana
on 30 September 1927 (C10/251). Amongst this land was the 230 acres, more

or less (“excepting two lots"™) of X6/600.

Since this land has been owned by almost everyone, it is worth
following a few years (and owners) longer. On 21 February 1949 (675/535)
A. Smith Bowman and Sons (a partnership composed of A. Smith Bowman,

E. Delong Bowman and A. Smith Bowman, Jr.), also "trading under the name of
Sunset Hills Farm” sold land to A. Smith Bowman and Sons, Inc., for $10.

Our favorite 230 acres, more or less, was included.

A. Smith Bowman and Sons, Inc., then “"sold"” the lands of 675/535
to the Interim Distillery Corporation (which the Bowman's owned) on 31

August 1960 (1925/510).

Until now (from 1877-1960) the exact metes and bounds of the "230
acres more or less” has never been given. In 1961 it was lost forever
since Bowman had his land surveyed and broken into parcels, Parcel No. 1,

127 acres, contains the land of the 230 acres which lie in Herndon.

On 31 August 1960 (1925/539) Interim Distillery took out a deed of
trust with Henry B. Weaver, Jr. and Charles Majer as trustees. The trust
wa; for $8,400,000. Then on 27 March 1961 (1988/154), A, Smith Bowman
Distillery, Inc., (formerly Interim Distillery Corporation) sold their land

(including parcel 1) to Palindrome Corporation, subject to this trust.
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Palendrome changed its name to Reston, Virginia, Inc., and sold
>1>~; the land to John Hancock Mutual Life on 1 April 1966 (2750/560). Parcel 1

(127.28 acres) was part of the 6452 acres sold.
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